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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA

Alexandria Division
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA }¥o. 11101207
)
V. ) Count Onig, 18 US.C. § 371
} Conspiracy to Violate the Arms Export
HONG WEI XIAN, Y Control Act and to Smuggle Goods from
a/l/a "Harry Zan," ) the United States
)
und Y Count Two, 22 U.5.C. § 2778
) &22CFR. §127.]
LILI, 3 Atiempted Export of USML items in
a/k/a “Lea L1 3 Volation of the Arms Export Contro] Act
)
Defendants } FORFEITURE, 18 1.8 C. § 981(a)(1)(C)
) & 21 U8.C. §853(m)
ED TMENT
16 =gl Ale
THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

At gl times rejevant 1o this Indictment:
OENERAL ALLFGATIONS
The Defendants

L. Defendanl HONG WEI XIAN, a/k/a "Harry Zan" ("XIAN™), is the president of
Beijing Starc.rcmes Space Science and Technology Development Company Limited ("Beijing
Starcreates™, XIAN is a cltizen of the Peaple’s Republic oF China ("PRC™) and resides in the
PRC.

2. Defendant L1 LI, a/k/a “Lea LI" (LI™) i1 the vice president of Beijing Statcreates.

Ll is a citizen of the PRC and resldes in the PRC.
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3. Beljing Starcreates, vsing an address at Room 904, No. 7 Bullding, Hui Mlo
Yuan, Chao Yang Distriet, Beijing, PRC, engages In the business of importing and selling,
among other things, programmable read-only memory mlcrochips to China Aerospace Sclence
pnd Technology Corporation, which is located in the FRC. China Aerospace is controlled by the
PRC government. Directly, and through its numerous subsidiaries, academies, research
jnstitutes, and universities, China Aerospace plays a substantial role in the research, design,
development, and production of strateglc and iactical misslle systems and launch vehicles for the
PRC.

The Arms Export Control Act

4, The Arms Export Control Acl (“AECA”) authorizes the President of the United
States 10 contro) the export of “defense artioles” by designating items, such as spacecrafl systems
and associated equipment, on the United States Munitions List.

5. The Arms Export Contro) Act and its implementing regulatlons, the Internatlonal
Traffic in Arms Regulations (“ITAR"), require a person to apply for and obiain an export license
from the Directorate of Defense Trade Controls (“DDTC") of the United States Department of
State before exporting arms, ammunilion, or articles of war, which are all classlfied as “defense
articles,” from the United States. In the application for an export license, the exporter is required
o state, among other things, the nature of the defense articles 1o be exported, the end recipient of
the defense asticles, and the purpose for which the defense nrticles are Intended. These factors
and others assisl the DDTC In determining whether the export of the dafense articles would

further the security and foreign policy interests of the Unjied States,

P
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6. The defense arilcles which ara subject to such licensing requirements are
deslgnated on the Unlted States Munitioas List. Those dealgnatlons are made by the State
Department with concurrence of the Defense Department.

7. Category XV(e) of the Munitions List includes spacecraft sysiems and associated
equipment. This category includes all varielles of s:IatelIiws, Including communication satellites,
remole sensing satellites, sclentific satellites, as well as radlation-hardened microelectronic
elreults which meet certaln characterisilcs and all designed or modlfled syslems or subsystems,
componenls, parls, aceessorles, atlachments, and assoclated equipment for the articles in thls
calagory.

a. A programmable read-only memory microchip (“"PROM®) serves 1o store the
initial stari-up program for a computer system, The PROMSs vsed In sat¢llite systems and other
space-based applications must be able to withstand the conditlons present in outer space. A
company localed in the Eastern Distriet of Virginia ("Company A") manulactures & radlation-
hardened PROM, with product number 197A807-241C, that is specifically deslgned for such
applications. The DDTC has determined that these Company A PROMs are “defense artioles”
under Category XV(e) of the United States Munitions List.

9. Since 1990, (he U,S. government hes maintained an arms embargo agalnst the
PRC that prohlblts the export, re-export, or r¢-transfer of any defense article 1o the PRC. Itls the
policy of the United States and the U.S, Department of State to deny licenso applications and any

other written requests or approvals for the éxport, re-export, or transfer to (he PRC of defense

articles on the United States Munltions List.

-3-
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10.  Atno time did the defendants XIAN or LI apply for, recelvs, or possess a license

to oxport defense arlloles of any description.
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OUNT
18US.C.§37

Conspiracy to Violate the Arms Expert Contrel Act
and fo Smuggle Goods From the Unlied States

I, The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the General Allegations of
this Indletment,. -

2. From in or about Apri] 2009 through at least Soptember 1, 2010, In the Eastern
Distriet of Virginia and elsewhere, HONG WEI XIAN, a/k/a "Harry Zan," and L1 L1, #/k/a "Lea
Li,” unlawfully and knowingly combined, conspired, confederated and agreed with each other,
and with others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to commit the following offenses against
the United States:

a, To willfully export énd cause to be exported, without a'license for such
export fasued in accordance with the Arms Export Control Act and the Intemational Traffic in
Arms Regulations, ltems designated as defense atleles on the Unlted Siates Munltlons List, In
violation of Title 22, Unlted Gtates Coﬂe. Section 2778; and

b. To fraudutently and knowingly export and send from the Uniled States and
¢ause Lo be exported and sent from the United States, merchandise, articles, and objects contrary
to the laws and regulations of the United States, In violation of Tile 18, Uniled States Code,
Section 534,

3. Tn furtheranee of the conspiracy and {o effeot the illegal objects thereof, the
following overl acls, among others, were commitied In the Eastern Districi of Virginia and

elsewhers:

-5
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8. On or sbout April 2009, XIAN conlacted Company A o purchase &
number of the radlatlon-hardened Company A PROMs,

b. On or about May §, 2009, XIAN spoke with an individual whom XIAN
understood to be able to purchase the Company A PROMSs and acknowledged that the PROMas
would require a license to be exported to the PRC and thet such a license would not be granied.

t. On or aboul May 27, 2009, XLAN discussed with the individual via email
alternate delivery locations, such as Australia or New Zealand.

d. On or about Ogtober 2009, XTAN stated that he would pay a fina! price of
approximately $64,500 for 40 FROMs,

e.  Onorabout November 30, 2009, XIAN sent a partial payment from a
bank accoun! in the PRC to a bank account in Virgina lo Initiate the manufacture and eventual
axport of the Company A PROMs.

£, On or about March 4, 2010, XIAN and LI met outside the United States
wilh the Indlviduel For the purpose of discussing the sate of the Company A PROMs and possible
future buginess between the individual and the defendants. During the course of thls meeting:

1. XIAN explained that the Company A PROM that Beijing
Starcreates was purchasing were Intended for Chlna Aerospace Science Technology Corporalion,

ii. XIAN =tated that he had attempled to get an export license for
other products in the past but determined that i was difficull and took a long time. In addltlon,
XIAN stated thal in order to gel a license XIAN would have to 1dentlfy the end user and describe

the end use,

-
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i,  XIAN exbressed an Interest in purcheging 1000 Company A
PROMs and suggeated breaking the order up into as many as twelve shipments to avold drawing
attentlon to the order by the manufacturer. When the individual explained to XIAN and LI that
to export the Company A PROMs without a license would be breaking the law, XTAN said,
"Yeah, I lnow.”

iv. LY asked (he individual lo suggest & country for the delivery of 40
Company A PROMs, and XTAN suggested several countries, including Indonesia and New
Zealand.

v, L1 suggested that the individual set up additional companies 1o use
in making future orders to purchase preater quantitlcs of Company A PROMs

g On or about April 27, 2010, XIAN agreed to depositin the individual's
bank account approximately $20,000 as an addftional payment toward the purchasé and gxport of
the Company A PROMS.

h. On or about May 1, 2010, XIAN agreed to meet the individual to recelve
the Company A PROMs at a location outslde the United States.

i On or about May 9, 2010, XIAN offered to pay the individua) an
addluonal $20,000 for bearing the risk of exporting the Company A PROMs.

) On or abour August 27, 2010, XIAN wire transferred approximately
$29,355 to the individual's bank account, which constituted a partial payment toward the
purchase and export of the Companjr A PROMs, plus a $10,000 "success fee" that was,
according to Xlan's prlor email communicalions with the individual, an acknowledgmen that

Xian and his co-conspirators were “seriously considering your [the individual’s] risks.”

7.
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k. On ot aboul Sepiember 1, 2010, XTAN and LI fraveled to a location
outside the United States to meel with the individual for the purpose of oblaining delivery of the
Company A PROMs,

(In violmion of Title 18, United States Coda, Sectlon 371).

8-
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COUNT TWO
22US.C. §2778
Avtempred Export of Defense Articles In Violatton of the AECA

1. The Grand Jury realleges and incorporates by reference the General Allegatlons
and the Overt Acts listed In Count One of this Indletment.

2, From in or about April 2009 through at least September 1, 2010, in the Easten
District of Virglnia and elsewhere, HONG WEL XIAN, &/k/a “Harry Zan,"” and LILI, a/k/a "Lea
Li," willRully attempted to export and o cause (o be exported, without a llcense for such export
issued in accordance with the Arms Export Control Act and the Intemational Traffie in Arms
Regulations, an ltem designated as a defense artlcle on the Unlted $tates Munitions Llst, that is,
rediation-hardened programmable read-only memory microchips, with produet number
197A807-41C.

(In violation of Title 22, United States Code, Section 2778 and Tiile 22, Code of Federal

Regulations, Sections 121.1, 123.1, and 127.1)
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FORFEITURE

I.  Theallegaions of Counts One and Two of this Indiciment are realleged and by
this reference fully incorporated herein for the purpose of alleglng forfellures to the United States
of America of property In which one or more of the defendants has an interest, pursuant to (he
provisions of Title 28, United States Code, Sectlon 2461(c) and Tille 18, United Btates Code,
Section 981(a)(1)(C).

2. Upon conviction of any of the offenses charged in Counts One or Two of this
Indictment, the defendants, HONG WEI XIAN, a/k/a “Harry Zan," and L1 L1, a/k/a "Lea LY," ,
shall forfeil 1o the United States all property, real and personal, that constitutes ot ls derived from
proceeds traceable to the commission of the aforestated offenses, for which tha defendants shall
be jolntly and severally Hable, including but not Hmited to the sum of £42,710.00, which
represents the amount of proceeds obtained as a result of the offense.

3. 1f any of the above described property, as a resull of any act or omission of the
defendants;

a, cannot be Joeated upon the exervise of due diligence;

b. hes been transfurred or sold to, or deposited with, a thivd party;

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

d has been substantially diminished In value; or

&, has been commiﬁgled wilh other property which cannol be subdivided

without difficulty,
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it 15 the intent of the Unlted States, pursuant to Titls 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), to

sesk forfelture of any other property of sald defendants up to the valug of the above forfeilable

propeity.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA o

- Hlﬂ' (31 .
4 . s AN AL bl
Alexandria Division 0 TN OPEH COUAT, ﬁ

N -0

QRO e

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )
) CUERK, U DISTRICT GOURT .
v, ) No. 1:10cr207 ALEXAKDRIA, VIRGIKIA
)
LILI, )
akfa “Lea Li," )
)
)

Defendant

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The parlies stipulate that the allegations in Count One of thé indictment and (he following
facts are true and correcl, and that had the matter gone (o trial the United Siates would have
proven them beyond a reasonable doubt.

I Delendant Fong Wei Xian, a/k/a "Harry Zan” (“Xian™) and defendant Li Li, a/k/a
“Lea Li" ("Li") are officers of Beijing Starcrcates Space Science and Technolopy Development
Company Limited ("Beijing Starcreales”).

2. Beijing Starcreates, using an address at Room 904, No. 7 Building, Hui Min
Yuan, Chao Yang District, Beijing, PRC, engages in the business of importing and selling,
among other things, programmable read-only memory microchips 1o China Aerospace Science
-andl Technology Corporation, which is located in the PRC. China Aerospace is controlled by the
PRC government, Directly, and through its numerous subsidiarics, academies, research
institutes, and universities, China Aerospace plays n subslantial role in the research, design,
development, and produclion of stratepic and taclical missile sysiems and launch vehicles for the

PRC,



Jun. 1002011 4:01PM No. 0197 P 14/36

Case 1:10-cr-00207-GBL  Document 52  Filed 06/01/11 Page 2 of 5

3, In or about April 2009, Xian contacted a company localed in the Easlern District
ol Virginia (“Company A™) to purchase o number of radiation-hardened programmable 1'ead-0n1y
memory microchips. Programmable read-only memory chips (PROMS) serve o store the initial
start-up program for a computer sysiem. Radiation-hardened PROMSs are used in satellite
sysiems andl other space-based applicalions; these memory chips must be manufactured to be
able to withstand the conditions presenl in outer space. These radiation-hardened microchips are
“defense articles” under Category XV(e) of the United Siales Munitions Lisl, Any export or
atlempled export of radiation-hardened microchips from the United States lo any company or
individual in a foreign country I'chlil'es a license from the U.S, Depariment of Siate.

4, Over the course of several months beginning in May 2009, Xian engaged in
communicalions with an undercover law enforcement agent whom he understood to be able (o
obtain the Company A PROMs. By email and telephone with Xian, as well as al a meeting with
both Xian and Li, an agreement was reached in which the undercover agent would obtain 40
radiation-hardened microchips from Company A and sell (hemn to Xian and Li. Xian and Li
agreed 1o pay a final price of approximately $64,500.

3. On March 4, 2010, Xian and Li met outside the United States with the undercover
agent [or the purpose of finalizing the delails concerning the sale and delivery of the microchips,
as well as to discuss possible future business between the undercover agent and Xian and Li.
During the course of (his meeting;

a. Xian explained (hat the radiation-hardened PROMs were intended for

China Aeraspace Science Technology Corporation in (he Péople’s Republic of Chlina.
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b. Xian slated that he had attempted Lo get an export license [or olher
products in the past but delermined that it was difficult and took a long time. In addition, Xian
stated that in order (o get a license kian would have to identify the end user and describe the end
Lse,

C. Nian expressed an interest in purchasing 1,000 radiation-hardened
microchips and suggested breaking the order up into as many as (welve shipments to avoid
drawing the manufacturer’s attention 1o the order. When the undercover agent explained to Xian
and Li that (o export the microchips without a license would be breaking the law, Xian said,
“Yeah, I know."”

d. Xian and Li also discussed using another company in New Zealand 1o
receive a shipment of radiation-hardencd microchips from Company A. [t was clear from the
context of the conversation that the use of anolher company would be [or the purpose of avoiding
detection of the unlicensed exporl of the microchips,

e, Kian sugpested other locations, including Hong Kong, Indonesia, and New
Zealand, lor delivery of the microchips. 1t was clear from the conlext of the conversation that the
purpose for using such localions was to avoid detection of the unlicensed export of lhe
microchips.

£ Li further suggested using several companies to obtain future orders of
radiation-hardened microchips from Company A. [l was clear {rom ihe conlext of the
conversalion that the purpose for using such companies was so that the manufactrer would nol

become suspicious.
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6. On or aboul May 9, 2010, Xian offered (o pay the undercover agent a “success
fee™ of $20,000 for bearing the risk ol unlawfully exporling the radiation-hardened microchips.

7. On or about August 27, 2010, Xian wire translerred approximately $29,355 to the
undercover apent’s bank account, which constituted a partial payment toward the purchase and
exporl of the microchips, plus a $10,000 “success fee.” According {o Xian's and Li’s prior
communicalions with the undercover agent, it is clear that this “success fee” was an
acknowledgment that Xian and Li were “considéring your risks,”

B ‘The acts taken by the delendant in furtherance of the offense charged in Count
One ol the indictment, including the acts described above, were done willlully and knowingly
wilh the specific intent to violale the law. The defendant acknowledges thai the forepoing
slalement of lacts does not describe all of the delendant’s conduct relating to the offenses
charged in this casc nor does il idenli[‘y all of the persons with whom the defendant may have

engaged in illegal activities, The defendant firrther acknowledges that he is obligated under his
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plea agreement to provide additional information aboul this case beyond (hat which is described
in this stalement of facts.

Respectfully submilted,

NEIL H. MAcBRIDE
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

Afier consulling with my attorney and ursml 1o the plea agreement entered into this
day between the defendant, Li Li, and the United States, 1 hereby stipulate that the above

stalement of facts is true and aceurate, and that had (he maller proceeded to trial, the United

States would have proven them beyond a reasonable d %lb[.
Dated: "i‘:n&lg! Y /é/{/

LiLi
Delendant

'am Li Li’s attorney. I have carcfully reviewed the above statement of facts with him,

To my knowledge, his decision to stipulate to these facts is dn informed and voluntary ane.

Date; FL2x\\\ Qo N~

Alan H, Yamm{gl =
Counsel for the Defendant
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA

Alexandria Division

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA )
v, )) No. 1:10er207 !
HONG WEI XIAN, ;
a/k/a “Hairy Zon,” )
Defendant ;

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The parties stipulate thal the allegations in Count One of the indiciment and the following
facts are true and correct, and that had the matter gone (o trial the United Siates would have
proven them beyond a reasonable doubl.

1 Defendants Hong Wei Xian, a/k/a “Harry Zan™ (“Xian"), and LiLi, a/k/a “Lea
Li” ("Li"), are representatives of Beijing Starcreates Space Science and Technology
Development Company Limited ("Beiji ng Starcreates™),

2. Beijing Swarcreates, using an address a1 Room 904, No. 7 Building, Hui Min
Yuan, Chao Yang Distriet, Beijing, PRC, was formed to engage in the busiriess of importin e and
selling, among other things, programmable read-only memory microchips,

3. Programmable read-only memory chips (*PROMs”) serve (o store the initin) start-
Up program for a computer system, Radiation-hardened PROMs are used in saleilite systems and
other space-based applications; these memory chips must be manufaciured (o be gble Lo
withstand the conditions presen( in ouler space. These radiation-hardened microchips are

“defense anlicles” under Category XV(e) of the United Stales Munitions List. Any exportl or
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atternpled expont of radiation-hardened microchips from the United States to any company or

individuai in a foreign country requlres a license from the U.S. Department of State.
o MLMLL?‘{ Hrdarly
4. In or aboul late 2008, X—imhconmcte W company localed in the Easiern District of

Virginia (“Company A”) 1o inquire about purchasing radiation-hardened PROM:s for Beijing
st v acints . af Kogirs
Starcreates, An employee of Compuny A told Xian abonlhnother company (“Company B"),

{ud 5 M'I‘MEJ Fr.'M.-Z:_.c_, C:;r-?p-u." ﬁ <Al ”"r"f”:é‘”llé A-Mf:'i. AL .
which the employee sai% mmwmﬁ In or"aboul April aneindarm

Atadone [0
2009, Xian contacted a representalive of Company B who, unbeknownst to Xian, was an P ewtneZl
. #
undercover law enforcement agenl.

oA
3. Over the course of several months beginning in May 2009, Xian and Li engaged JL
in communications with the undercover Jaw enforcement agent, These negotiations included a
March 4, 2010, meeting between Xian and Li with the undercover agenl at which ihe defendants
told the undércover agc’nt‘!hakStﬂremma-intcﬂded%&sMeﬂMchrm China Aerospace.
5 P ‘
Science Technology Corporation (also known as “CASC") in the Peaple’s Republic of Chinq{- Sﬁ”‘ﬁ”ﬂm
ol el -
6. Over the course of months of negoliations, by email and tclephone with Xian, as
P
well as at a mecting with both Xian and Li, an agreement was reached in which the undercover a
agenl would obtain 40 radiation-hardened microchips from Company A and sell them to
Starcreates thorough Xian and Li, Xian and Li, on behalf of Starcreates, agreed to pay a final
price of approximately $64,500,
7. On March 4, 20[0, Xian and Li me( outside the United States with the undercover
agent for the purpose of finalizing the details concerning the sale and delivery of the microchips,

as well as to discuss possible future business between (he undercover agent and Xian and Li,

During the course of lhis meeting;
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Al Ad
a. Xian“explained thai thmdiﬂuan-hm#med-PRﬁfvfswc—iﬂ(endedhh 9’
P

China Aerospace Science Technology Corporation is & M chenl .

b. Xian staled that he had attempted (o get an export license for other
products in the past but clelemjincd that it was difficult and took a'long time. 1n addition, Xian
stated that in order (o get 4 license Xian would have 1o identifly the end user and describe the end
use,

C. Xian stated thal Starcreates was interested in purchasing 1,000 radiation-
hardened microchips and suggested breaking the order up into as many as (welve shipments to
avoid drawing the manufacturer's atlention 1o the order, Xian and Li indicated they were
interested in pursuing the purchase despile the undercover agent's explanation that exporting the
mic¢rochips without & license would be breaking the Jaw.

d. Xian and Li also discussed with the undercover agen! the possibility of
using another company in New Zealand 1o rececive a shipment of radiation-hardened microchips
[rom Company A. It was clear [rom the coniex( of the conversation thal the use of another
company would be for the purpose of avoiding delection of the unlicensed export of the
microchips,

e, Xiun, Li and the undercover agent discussed other locations, including
Hong Kong, Indonesia, and New Zcaland, for delivery of the microchips, Tt was elear from the
context of the conversation ihat the purpose for using such focations was 1o avoid detection of
the unlicensed export of the microchips.

f. Li further suggested using several companies to obtain furure orders of

radiation-hardened microchips from Company A. It was clear from the contex! of the

4

; VW
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conversation thal the purpose for using such companies was so that the manufacturer would nol
become suspicious,

8. On or about May 9, 2010, Xian sent an email to the undercover agent which
offered (hat Starcreales would pay the undercover agenl a “success fee” of $20,000 for bearing
the risk of unlawfully exporting the radiation-hardened microchips,

9. On or about August 27, 2010, with Xian's knowledge, Starcreates wirc (ransferred
approximately $29,355 to (he undercover ngen(’s bank account. The wire constituted a partial
payment toward the purchase and export of (he microchips, plus a $10,000 “success fee.”

10.  The acts taken by the defendant in furtherance of the offense charged in Count
One ol the indictment, including the acts described above, were done willfully and knowingly
with the specific intent 1o violate the law. The defendant acknowledges thal the foregoing
statement of [acts does not describe all of the defendant’s conduct relating to the olfenses
charged in this case nor does it identify all of the persons with whom the defendant may have

engaged in illegal activities. The defendant further acknowledges that he is obligated under his
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plea agreement (o provide additional information abou( this case beyond that which is described
in this statement of facts,

Respectfully submitted,

NELL H. MacBRIDE
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

Afler consulting with my atlorney and pursuanl (o the plea agreement entered into this
day between the defendant, Hong Wei Xian, and the United States, 1 hereby stipulate that the
above statement of facls is (rue and accurate, and that had the matter proceeded to trial, Lhe

United States would have proven them beyond a |'ea§%nablc\doub :

Dated: lﬁ% Mwé) 7”'7//

Hong Wei Xipn
Defendant

I'am Hong Wei Xian’s attorney. I have carelully reviewed (he above stalement of facls

with him. To my knowledge, his decision to stipulate to these facts is an informed nnd voluntary

ohn P, Rowley III
Counsel for the Defendant
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA

FILED
It OPEN COURT

Alexandria Division B
g
-0
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) v £
) o R
v, ) No, 1:10¢r207 ———
)
LI LI, )
a/k/a “Lea L1,” )
)
Delendant )
PLEA AGREEMENT

The Uniled States and the defendant, LI L1, have enlered into an agreemen! pursuant o
Rule 11 of the Federal Rules ol Criininal Procedure, The terms of the agreement are as follows:

I, Offense and Maximum Penalties

The defendant agrees Lo plead guilty 1o Count One of the superseding indictment filed on
September 16, 2010 (“the indictment™), which charges (he defendant with conspiring to violate
the Arms Expoit Control Act and (o smuggle poods [rom the United States, in violation of Tille
I8, United States Code, Section 371, The maximum penalties for this offense are a maximum |
term of five years of imprisonment, a fine of $250,000, forfeitre, special assessmenl; and three
years of supervised release, The defendant understands that this supervised release term is in
addition to any prison term the defendanl may receive, and (hat.a violation of a term of
supervised release could resuft in the delendant being relurned to prison for the Ml teim of

supervised release,
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2. Factual Basls for the Plea
The deferidant will plead guilty because the defendant is in fact puilty of the charged
olfense. The defendant admits (he facls sel forth in the slalement of facts filed wilh this plea
agreement and agrees that thase (acts establish guilt of the offense charged beyond a reasonable
doubt, The statement of facts, which is hereby incorporated into this plea agreement, constitules
a stipulation of facts for purposes of Section 1B1,2(a) of the Sentencing Guidelines.
3. Assistance and Advice of Counsel
The delendant is satisfied that the defendant’s altorney has rendered elfective assistance,
The defendant understands that by entering into this plea agreement, defendan! surrenders certain
rights as provided in this agreement, The defendant understands thal the rights of criminal
defendants include the following:
Y the right 10 plead not guilly and lo persist in (hal ples;
b. the right 10 A jury wial;
c the right 1o be represented by counsel — and if necessary have the court
appoint counsel — al trial and al every other stage of the proceedings; and
d. the right at (rial to confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, to be
protecied [rom compelled self-incrimination, to testify and present
evidence, and to compel the allendance of wlinesses,
4, Role of the Court and the Probation Office
The defendant understands that the Court has jurisdietion and authority 10 1mpose any
sentence within the stattory maximum described above but that the Court will delermine the

defendant’s actual sentence in accordancé with Title 18, United States Code, Seclion 3553(a).

2.
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The defendant understands thal the Court has not yef determined g sentence and (hat any estimale
of the advisory senlencing range under (he U.S, Sentencing Commission’s Sentencing Guidelines
Manual the delendant may have received from the defendant’s counsel, the United Slates, or the
Probation Olfice, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the United States, {he
Probation Office, or the Court. Additionally, pursuant to |he Supreme Court’s decision in United
Siates v. Boaker, 543 U.S. 220 (2005), the Court, afler considering the factors set forth in Tille
18, United States Code, Seclion 3553(a), may impose a senlence above or below the advisory
senlencing range, subject only to review by higher courts for reasonableness. The United States
makes no promise o representalion concerning whal sentence the defendant will receive, and the
defendant cannol withdraw a guilty plea based upon the actual sentence. The United States and
the defendant agree that the defendant has assisted (he govemment in the invesligation and
prosecution of the defendant’s own misconduct by timely notifying authorilies ol the defendant’s
intention to enter a plea of guilty, thereby permitling the government (o avoid preparing for trial
and permitting the government and the Court to allocate their resources efl liciently, Ifthe
defendant qualifies for a \wo-level decrease in olfense level pursuant to U.8.5.G. § 3EL.1(a) and
the offense level prior 1o the operalion of that section is a level 16 or grealer, the Fovernment
agrees (o file, pursvant to U.5.8.G. § 3E1,1(b), a metion prior lo, or at the time of, sentencing for
an additional one-level decrease in the defendant’s offense level.

5, Waiver of Appeal, FOIA and Privacy Act Rights

The defendant also understands that Tidle 18, Uniled States Code, Seclion 3742 affords a
defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed. Nonetheless, (he defendant knowingly

waives the right to appeal the conviction and any sentence within the statutory maximnun

3.
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described above (or the manner in which that senlence was determined) on (he grounds sct {orth
in Tille 18, United Stales Code, Seclion 3742 or on any pround whatsoever, in exchange for the
concessions mads by (ke United States in this plea agreement. This plea agreement tloes not
affect the rights or obligations of the United States as sel Torth in Title 18, United States Code,
Section 3742(b). The defendan! also hercby waives all rights, whether asserted directly orby a
represeniative, 10 request or receive (rom any department or agency of the United States any
records periaining o the investigation or proscculion of this ease, including without limitation
any records that may be sought under the Freedom of Information Act, Title 5, United Stales
Code, Seclion 532, or the Privacy Act, Tille 5, United Slates Code, Seclion 552a,

b, Speclal Assessment

Before sentencing in this case, the defendant agrees to pay a mandalory special
assessment ol one hundred dollars ($100.00) per count of conviction.

7. Payment of Monetary Penalties

The defendant understands and agrees that, pursuant lo Title 18, United Stales Code,
Seclion 3613, whatever monelary penalties are imposed by (he Court will be due immediately
and subject (o immediate enforcement by the United States as provided for in Section 3613,
Furlhermore, within 14 days of a requesl, the defendant agrees to provide all of his financial
information to the United Stutes and the Probation Office and, if requesied, lo participate in o
pre-sentencing deblor's examination and/or complete a.financial statement under penalty of
perjury. If the Court imposes e schedule of payments, the defendant understands that the
schedule of payments is merely a minimum schedule of payments and nol the only methad, nor a

limitation on the methods, available o the Uniled States to enforce the judgment. If the

4=
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defendant is incarcerated, the defendant agrees to voluntarily participate in the Bureau of Prisons’
Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, regardless ol whether the Court specifically directs
participalion ar imposes a schedule of payments,
8. Immunity from Further Prosecution in this District
The United States will not further criminally prosecute the defendant in the Eastern
District of Virginia [or the specific conduet described in the indictment or statement of facts.
9, Dismissal of Other Counts
Upon the Cotnl’s acceptance of the defendant’s plea of guilty pursuant to this plea
agreement, the Uniled States will move lo dismiss the remaining counts of the indiciment
againsl this defendant.
10.  Defendant’s Cooperation |
The defendant agrees to cooperate fully and truthlully with the Uniled Slaies, and provide
all information known to (he defendant regarding any criminal activity, as well as all information
deemed by the goverament 1o be of intelligence value, as requested by the government, In (hat
regard;
n. The delendant agrees to testify truthfully and completely at any grand
juries, trials or other procegdings,
b. The delendant agrees 1o be reasonably available for debriefing and pre-
(rial conferences as the United States may require:
L. The defendant agrees to provide all documents, records, writings, or

materials of any kind in the dofendant's possession or under (he
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11,

defendant’s care, custady, or conwrol relating directly or indireetly to all
areas ol inquiry and investigation.

The defendant spices that, al (he request of (he United States, the
defendant will volumarily submil (o polyaraph examinalions, and (hat the
United States will choose the polygraph examiner and specify the
procedures [or the exaiminations.

The deflendant agrees that the statement of facts is limited 10 information
to support (he plea. The defendant will provide more detailed facls
relating lo this case during ensuing debriefings,

The defendant is hereby on notice thal the defendant may not violate any
federal, slate, or local criminal law while cooperating with the
government, and that the government will, in its discretion, consider any
snch violation in evaluating whether to [ile a motion for a downward
departure or reduction of sentence.

Nothing in this plea agreement places any obligation on the government (o

seek (he delendant’s cooperalion o assistance.

Use of Information Provided by the Defendant Under This Agreement

The Uniicd Slates will niot use any truthful information provided pursuant lo this plea

agreement in any criminal prosecution against the defendant in the Eastern District of Virginia,

excepl in any proseculion for a crime of violence or conspiracy 1o commil, or aiding and abetling,

a erime of violence (as defined in Title 18, United Slates Code, Seclion 16). Purswant 1o

U.5.5.G. § 1B1.8, no truthful information that the defendant provides under this plea agreement

-G-
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will be used in determining the applicable guideline range, cxeepl as provided in section
|B1.8(b). Nothing in this pleu agreement, however, restricts the Courl's or Probation Qfficer’s
access Lo informalion and records in the possession of the United Stales. Furthermore, nothing in
this plea agreement prevents the governntent in any way from proseeuting (he defendant should
the defendant knowingly provide false, untruth ful, or perjurious informalion or testimony, or
from using information provided by the defendant in furiherance of any forfeiture action, whether
criminal or civil, adminisivative or judicial. 1f requested, the United States will bring 1o lhe
alfention ol other prosecuting offices this plea agreement and (he government's assessiment of the
full extent of rhe defendant’s cooperation.

(2. Defendant Must Provide Full, Complete and Truthfnl Cooperation

This plea ngreement is nol conditioned wpon charges being brought against any other
individual, This plea agreement is not conditioned upon any outcome in any pending
invesligation. This plea agreement is not conditioned upon any resull in any [wture prosecution
which may occur because of the defendant’s cooperation, This plea agreement is not conditioned
upon any resull in any future grand jury presentation or (rial involving charges resulting from this
investigation. This plea agreement is conditioned upon the defendant providing full, complele
and truth(ul cooperation.

13. Motion for 4 Downward Departure

The purties agree that the Uniled States reserves the right to seck any departure from the
applicable puidelines senlencing range, pursuant to seetion SK1 .1 ol the Senlencing Guidelines

and Policy Siatements, or any reduction of sentence pursuant to rule 35(b) ol the Federal Rules of
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Criminal Procedure, if; in tts sole discretion, the United Stales determines that such a departure
or reduction of sentence is appropriate. I

14. Farfeiture Agrecmuht |

The defendant agrees to forfeit all interests in any vnlawtul export related assel (hat the
defendant owns or over which the defendant exercises conlrol, directly or indirectly, as well ag
any property that is tracenble 10, (ieri}'ccl from, fungible with, or a substitule for property {hat
constitutes the. proceeds of his o(Tense, including bul not limited to the sum of $48,710, which
the defendant agrees represents proc;eeds abtained as a result of (he ofTense. The defendant
furlther agrees to waive all interest in the assels in any administrative or judiciai forfeiture
proceeding, whether criminal or civil, stale or lederal. The defendant agrees to consent o the
entry of orders of forfeiture for such properfy and walves the requirements of rules 32.2 and 43(a)
of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure regarding notice of the forfeiture in the chorging
inslrument, announcement of the l'mj'l"eil‘urc al sentencing, and incorporation of the farfeiture in
the judgment, The delendant unclers;lﬂnds that the lorleiture of assets is part of the sentence that
may be imposed in this casc. Defendant admits and agrees lhat the conducl described in the
charging inslrument and statcment qf' (acts provides a sufficient factual and statutory basis for the
forfeiture of the property sought by the government,

15, Waiver of Further Review of Forfleiture

The defendant further agrees {o waive all constitutional and statutory challenges to
lorfeiture in any manner {including direct appeal, habeas carpus, or any other means) to any
[orfeiture carried out in accordance with this plea agreement on any prounds, including that the

forfeiure constitutes an excessive fine or punishment, The defendant also waives any failure by

8-
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the Courl 10 advise the defendant of any applicable forleitare al the time the guilty plea is
accepted as required by Rule 11(b)(1)(I). The defendant agrees (o take all sieps as requested by
the United States 10 pass clear title wo forfeilable assets to the United States, and to testify
truthlully in any judicial forfeiture proceeding. The defendanl understands and agrees that all
property covered by this plea agreement is subject to forfeiture as proceeds of illegal conduct,
property facilitating illegal conduct, property involved in illegal conducl giving rise (o forfeiture,
or subslitule assels for praperty otherwise subject to forleilure.

16,  The Dcl*cnﬂmit“sObjligntinns Regarding Assets Subject to Forleiture

Upon request by the gavernment, (he defendant agrees to idenlify all assels in which the
defendant had any inlerest or over which the defendant exercises or exercised conlrol, direcily or
indirectly, within the past five years. The defendant agrees to take all sleps as requested by the
United States to oblain from any olhjer parties by any lawlul means any records of assets owned
al any time by the defendant, The defendant agrees 1o undergo any polygraph examination the
United Siales may choose 1o administer concerning such assets and to provide and/or consent to
the release of the delendant’s tax returns for the previous five years.

17, Consent Given for Removal from the United States

The defendant acknowledges that the defendant is removable from the United States and
agrees not lo contesl any removal proceedings brought againsl the defendant by the Department
of Homeland Security (DHS), I lhcf DHS files & Notice 1o Appear or other administrative
charging document against the defendant, the defendant ngrees to request un expedited removal
hearing and 10 consent to removal, Thc delendant acknowledges thal by consenting (o removal,

the defendant will be immediately removed from the Uniled States upon the completion of any

9.
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period of incarceration, The defendan| knowingly waives any and all riglits to appeal, reopen,
reconsider, or otherwise challenge ll;is removal,

18,  Walver of Rights Related to Remoyal from the United States

Exeept as provided in (he lollowing paragraph, (he defendant agrees 1o waive the
defendant's rights to apply for any ﬂ!\d all forms ol veliel or proteciion [rom removal,
deportation, or exclusion under the [;mmigrmion and Nationality Aet (as amended) and related
federal regulations, These rights inc;ludc, but are not limited to, the ability 10 apply for the
following forms of relief or pmlecliqn from removat: (a) voluntary departure; (b) asylum; (¢)
withhelding ol deportalion or removal, (d} cancellation of removal; () suspension of
deportation; () adjustment of status; and (g) proteclion under Article 3 of the Convention
Against Torture. Ag part of this apreement, (he defendant specifically acknowledges and states

i
that the defendant has not been persecuted in, and has no present [ear of persccution in, ihe

People’s Republic of China on accouni of race, religion, nationality, membership in a particular

social proup or political opinion, Similarly, the defendant furither acknowledees and states that

the delendant has not been tortured in, and has no present lear of torture in the People’s Republic

of China.
19.  Exception for C]lnllgc(l Circumstances Arlsing After Plea.
Nothing in this plea ngrcemcm shall prohibit the defendant from applying lor
asylum, withholding of removal, or protection under Arlicle 3 of the Convention Against
Torture, provided the application is based sotely an changed circumslances arising afier the entry

of this plea bul before the defendunt’s removal.
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20.  The Defendnnt’s Cooperation In the Defendant’s Removal

The «efendant agrees to assist the DHS in the exccution of the defendant’s removal.
Specifically, the defendant agrecs (0 assist the DHS in (he procurement of any travel or other
documents necessary for the clefendzint's removal; to meet with and to cooperale with
representatlves of the counlry or countries lo which the defendant’s removal is directed: and to
execute those forms, applicalions, or waivers needed (o execute or expedile the defendant’s
removal, The defendant fiurther understands that the delendant’s failure or refusal 1o assisl the
DHS in the execution of the dcl‘cnda:nl's removal shall breach this plea agreement and may
subject the defendant to criminal penaltics under Tille 8, United States Code, Section 1253,

21.  Plea Agreement Binding for Purposes of Removal Procecdings.

The defendant agrees that the defendant inlends the apreements contained in this pleu
agreement Lo be binding upon the defendant during any removal proceeding that may be
instituted against the defendant as a fesult of this plen agreement. In particular, the defendant
acknowledges and aprees (hat the agreemems concerni ng removal conlained in the plea
agreement were enlered into by the defendant and the United States wilh the express
understanding that the agreements are binding lor purposes of any future removal proceeding
before the Board of Iimimigration Appeals, an immigration judge, or the DHS,

22, Breach of the Plea Apreement and Remedles

This plea agreement is effective when signed by the defendant, the defendant’s allomey,
and an altorney for the Uniled States. The defendant agrees to eniry of this plen agreement at the
date and lime scheduled with the Court by the United States (in consultation with the defendant's

altorney), Il the defendant withdraws from this plea agreement, or commils or altempts Lo
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commit any additional federal, state or local crimes, or intentionally gives materially false,
incomplele, or misleading testimony or information, or otherwise violates any provision of this
gpreement, 1then:

a. The Uniled Smlcs will be released from its obligations under this plea
agreenment, inéluding any obligation to seck a downward departure or a
reduction in sentence, The defendant, however, may not withdraw the
guilly plea entered pursuant Lo this plea agreement;

b. The defnndani will be subject (o prosecution for any federal criminal
violation, incljuding, bul not limited (o, perjury and obsiruction of justice,
Lhat is not lime-barred by the applicable statte of limitations on the date
this plea agreement is signed, Nolwithstanding the subsequent expiration
of the siatute of limitalions, in any such prosccmion, the defendant agrees
(o waive any siatute-of-limitations delonse; and.

c. Any pruseculiiun, including (he prosecution that is (he subject of this plea
apreement, may be premised upon any informaltion provided, or statements
made, by the defendant, and all such information, statements, and leads
derived therelrom may be used against the defendanl. The defendant
waives any right {o claim [hat slatements made before or aller the date of
this plea agret{mcnt, including the stalement of facls accompanying this
plea agreemen:t or adopled by the defendant and any other staterents made
pursuant to this or any other agreement will the United States, should be

cxcluded ar suppressed under Fen. R. Evip. 410, Fep. R. Crim, P, 11(f),

-12-
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the Sentencing Guidelines ar any other provision of the Constifulion or
federal law.

Any alteged breach of this plea agreement by either parly shall be determined by the Courl in an

appropriale proceeding al which the defendant’s disclosures and documenlary evidence shall be

admissible and at which the nmving: party shall be required to establish a breach of the plea
agreement by a preponderance of (he evidence. The proceeding established by (his paragraph
does not apply, however, to the decision of the United States whether to file a motion based on
“substantial assislance” as that phrase is ased in rale 35(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal
Procedure and section 5K1.1 of ihe $enlcncing Guidelines and Policy Statements. The defendant
agrees that the decision whether to fila such a molion rests in the sole diseretion of the United
States.

23, Nnture of the Agreement and Modifications

This written agreemen( constitutes the complele plea agreement belween the United
States, the defendant, and the defendlnnl’s counsel, The defendant and his atlomey acknowledge
(hat no threats, promises, or representations have been made, nor agreements reached, other than

those set forih in writing in (his plea agreement, to cause the defendant 1o plead guilty. Any

-13-

35/36



Jun. 1002011 4:06PM No. 0197 P 36/36

Case 1:10-¢r-00207-GBL Document 51 Filed 06/01/11 Page 14 of 14

modification of this plea agreement shall be valid only as set forth in writing in a supplemental or
revised plea agreement signed by all parties,

Respectlully submitted,

NEIL H. MACBRIDE
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

Defendant’s Signature: | hcrei;y tigm:: that Lhayg consulted with my altorney and fully
understand all rights with respect to the pending indictment. Further, | fully understand all rights
with respect (o Title 18, United Slates Code, Section 3553 and the provisions of the Senlencing
Guidelines Manual that may apply in my easé. 1 have read this plea apreenient and carefully
reviewed every part of it with my nl[ﬁrnﬁy. Lunderstand this plea agreement and voluntarily
agree to it. “)

Daled: 5]\_/\)‘_“ | /E/O

Li Li
Defendant

Defense Counsel Signature: [ am counsel for ihe defendant in this case. [ have fully
explained to the defendant the defendant’s rights wilh respect 1o the pending indiciinent. Furlher,
I'have reviewed Title 18, Uniled States Code, Section 3553 and the Sentencing Guidelines
Manual, and I have fully explained to the defendant the provisions that may apply in this case. |
have carefully reviewed every part of this plea agreemen( with the defendant. To my knowledge,

the defeadant’s decision Lo enter into this agreement is an informed and voluriary one,

Date;: _ < ]:g{& A QX-MN\M

Alan H, Yﬂmmfgtj
Counsel Jor the Defendan(
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